

List of legislative instruments due to sunset on 1 October 2025

for tabling by the Attorney-General under section 52 of the Legislation Act 2003

List tabling day: First sitting day on or after 1 April 2024.

List preparation date: 13 March 2024

About this list

Requirement to provide list for tabling

This list of legislative instruments has been prepared for laying before each House of Parliament in accordance with section 52 of the *Legislation Act 2003* (the LA).

This list sets out the legislative instruments that are due to sunset (that is, to be repealed by section 50, 51 or 51A of the LA) on 1 October 2025.

Under subsection 52(2) of the LA, the Attorney-General must arrange for this list to be laid before each House of the Parliament on the first sitting day of the House on or after 1 April 2024.

This list was up-to-date when prepared on 13 March 2024.

Structure of list

To assist the reader, the instruments are grouped by administering department, consistent with the Administrative Arrangements Order last amended on 3 August 2023.

If a department is not mentioned in the list, the department does not have any legislative instruments due to sunset on 1 October 2025. If 2 or more departments administer a legislative instrument, the instrument is listed under each department and an asterisk (*) included beside the instrument name.

More information about instruments on list

The full text of each listed instrument and information about its current status is available on the whole-of-government Federal Register of Legislation (https://www.legislation.gov.au).

Further information about an instrument may be requested from the administering department or its relevant agencies.

Next list

A list of all the instruments that are due to sunset on 1 April 2026 is required to be tabled on the first sitting day on or after 1 October 2024.

Contents

Part 1 —Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry	4
Part 2 — Attorney-General's Department	
Part 3 — Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water.	4
Part 4 — Department of Defence	5
Part 5 — Department of Education	5
Part 6 — Department of Employment and Workplace Relations	6
Part 7 — Department of Finance	6
Part 8 — Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade	6
Part 9 — Department of Health and Aged Care	
Part 10 — Department of Home Affairs	7
Part 11 — Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development,	
Communications and the Arts	9
Part 12 — Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet	10
Part 13 — Department of Social Services	11
Part 14 — Department of the Treasury	12
Part 15 — Department of Veterans' Affairs	15

Part 1—Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry

Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Farm Household Support (South Australian River Murray Sustainability	F2015L01182
	Irrigation Industry Improvement Program) Minister's Rule 2015	
2	Fisheries Management (Sedentary Organisms) Proclamation 2015	F2015L01403
3	Horticulture Marketing and Research and Development Services (Cessation of	F2015L01348
	Industry Export Control Body) Declaration 2015	

Part 2—Attorney-General's Department

Attorney-General's		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Administrative Appeals Tribunal Regulation 2015, SLI 2015 No. 94	F2015L00959
2	Australian Transaction Reports and Analysis Centre Industry Contribution Census Day Determination 2015 (No. 2)	F2015L00864
3	Australian Transaction Reports and Analysis Centre Industry Contribution Determination 2015 (No. 1)	F2015L00522
4	Bankruptcy (Estate Charges) (Amount of Charge Payable) Determination 2015	F2015L00678
5	Bankruptcy (Fees and Remuneration) Determination 2015	F2015L00680
6	Finance Minister's Orders (Financial Statements for reporting periods ending on or after 1 July 2011) Repeal Instrument 2015*	F2015L00889
7	Legislation (General) Regulation 2015, SLI 2015 No. 159	F2015L01476
8	Regulatory Powers (Standard Provisions) Regulation 2015, SLI 2015 No. 138	F2015L01313
9	Telecommunications (Interception and Access) (Emergency Services Facilities – Queensland) Instrument 2015	F2015L00868

Part 3—Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water

Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Amendments to the list of threatened ecological communities under section 181 of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EC62)	F2015L01338
2	Amendments to the list of threatened ecological communities under section 181 of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EC127)	F2015L00643
3	Amendments to the list of threatened ecological communities under section 181 of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EC130)	F2015L00646
4	Building Energy Efficiency Disclosure Determination 2016 Note 1	F2016L01276
5	Building Energy Efficiency Disclosure (Disclosure Affected Buildings) Determination 2016 Note 1	F2016L01148
6	Building Energy Efficiency Disclosure Regulations 2010, SLI 2010 No. 203 Note 2	F2010L01955
7	Carbon Credits (Carbon Farming Initiative—Beef Cattle Herd Management) Methodology Determination 2015	F2015L01434
8	Carbon Credits (Carbon Farming Initiative—Estimating Sequestration of Carbon in Soil Using Default Values) Methodology Determination 2015	F2015L01163

Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
9	Carbon Credits (Carbon Farming Initiative—Facilities) Methodology	F2015L01346
	Determination 2015	
10	Carbon Credits (Carbon Farming Initiative—Oil and Gas Fugitives)	F2015L01230
	Methodology Determination 2015	
11	Carbon Credits (Carbon Farming Initiative—Reducing Greenhouse Gas	F2015L00584
	Emissions from Fertiliser in Irrigated Cotton) Methodology Determination	
	2015	
12	Carbon Credits (Carbon Farming Initiative—Reforestation and Afforestation	F2015L00682
	2.0) Methodology Determination 2015	
13	Carbon Credits (Carbon Farming Initiative—Superseded Methodology	F2015L00940
	Determinations—Revocation and Transitional Provisions) Instrument 2015	
14	Finance Minister's Orders (Financial Statements for reporting periods ending	F2015L00889
	on or after 1 July 2011) Repeal Instrument 2015*	
15	Instrument revoking and replacing Management Plan (25 June 2013) Note 3	F2013L01343
16	Pulu Keeling National Park Management Plan 2015-2025	F2015L01389

Note 1: The original sunset date for $\underline{F2016L01148}$, $\underline{F2010L01955}$ and $\underline{F2016L01276}$ was 1 October 2026 but the sunset date was changed to 1 October 2025 by a declaration made under section 51A of the Legislation Act 2003 (see $\underline{F2020L00335}$).

Part 4—Department of Defence

Defence		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Woomera Prohibited Area Rule 2014 Determination of an Exclusion Period	F2015L01257
	for the Green Zone (10 August 2015) Note 4	

Note 4: <u>F2015L01257</u> was current when this list was prepared but is due to be repealed on 1 October 2024 due to the repeal of its authorising legislation.

Part 5—Department of Education

Education		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Australian Education (Financial Assistance for Non-participating States and Territories) Determination 2015	F2015L01518
2	Australian Research Council (ARC) Funding Rules for schemes under the Linkage Program for the year 2017—ARC Centres of Excellence	F2015L00792
3	Australian Research Council Funding Rules for schemes under the Discovery Program 2015—Future Fellowships	F2015L00978
4	Australian Research Council Funding Rules for schemes under the Discovery Programme (2015 edition)	F2015L01468
5	Australian Research Council Funding Rules for schemes under the Linkage Programme (2015 edition)	F2015L01467

Note 2: The original sunset date for $\underline{F2010L01955}$ was 1 October 2020 but the sunset date was changed to 1 October 2025 by a declaration made under section 51A of the Legislation Act 2003 (see $\underline{F2020L00335}$).

Note 3: <u>F2013L01343</u> was previously listed as sunsetting on 1 October 2023 but its sunset date was changed to 1 October 2025 by a certificate made under section 51 of the *Legislation Act 2003* (see <u>F2023L01300</u>).

Part 6—Department of Employment and Workplace Relations

Employment and Workplace Relations		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Fair Entitlements Guarantee (Extended operation of the Act in relation to SDV	F2015L01456
	Longwall Group in Administration) Declaration 01/2015	
2	Social Security (Administration) (Penalty Amount) Determination 2015 (No.	F2015L00801
	1)	
3	Social Security (Administration) (Persistent Non-compliance) (Employment)	F2015L00800
	Determination 2015 (No. 1)	

Part 7—Department of Finance

Finance		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Medical Research Future Fund (Amount to be Transferred from the Health	F2015L01412
	and Hospitals Fund) Determination 2015	
2	PGPA Act (AGS Client Funds Special Account 2015 – Establishment)	F2015L00675
	Determination 2015/03	
3	PGPA Act (AGS Operational Special Account 2015 – Establishment)	F2015L00676
	Determination 2015/02 Note 5	
4	PGPA Act (Consular Services Special Account 2015–Establishment)	F2015L01171
	Determination 2015/05	
5	PGPA Act (Growth Fund Skills and Training Special Account 2015—	F2015L01195
	Establishment) Determination 2015/04	
6	PGPA Act (Human Pituitary Hormones Special Account 2015—	F2015L01395
	Establishment) Determination 2015/09 Note 5	
7	PGPA Act (Melbourne Airport New Runway Land Acquisition Special	F2015L01474
	Account – Establishment) Determination 2015/10	
8	PGPA Act (Military Death Claim Compensation Special Account 2015 -	F2015L01311
	Establishment) Determination 2015/08	
9	PGPA Act (Recovery of Compensation for Health Care and Other Services	F2015L01321
	Special Account—Establishment) Determination 2015/06	

Note 5: F2015L00676 and F2015L01395 have ceased to have effect.

Part 8—Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade

Foreign Affairs and Trade		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Australian Passports (Application Fees) Determination 2015	F2015L01222
2	Australian Passports Determination 2015	F2015L01223
3	Foreign Passports (Law Enforcement and Security) Determination 2015	F2015L01224

Part 9—Department of Health and Aged Care

Health and Aged Care		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Declaration of Quality Assurance Activities under section 124X of the Health Insurance Act 1973 – QAA 1/2015 Note 6	F2015L00718
2	Declaration of Quality Assurance Activity under section 124X of the Health Insurance Act 1973 – QAA 2/2015 Note 6	F2015L00716

Health and Aged Care		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
3	Declaration of Quality Assurance Activity under section 124X of the Health Insurance Act 1973 – QAA 3/2015 Note 6	F2015L00717
4	Declaration of Quality Assurance Activity under section 124X of the Health Insurance Act 1973 – QAA 4/2015 Note 6	F2015L00719
5	Declaration of Quality Assurance Activity under section 124X of the Health Insurance Act 1973 – QAA 5/2015 Note 6	F2015L01104
6	Declaration of Quality Assurance Activity under section 124X of the Health Insurance Act 1973 – QAA 6/2015 Note 6	F2015L01110
7	National Health (Botulinum Toxin Program) Special Arrangement 2015, PB 87 of 2015	F2015L01367
8	National Health (Growth Hormone Program) Special Arrangement 2015, PB 85 of 2015	F2015L01368
9	National Health (IVF Program) Special Arrangement 2015, PB 60 of 2015	F2015L01004
10	National Health (Originator Brand) Determination 2015, PB 100 of 2015	F2015L01525
11	Poisons Standard July 2015 Note 6	F2015L00844
12	Poisons Standard June 2015 Note 6	F2015L00749
13	Poisons Standard October 2015 Note 6	F2015L01534
14	Private Health Insurance (Health Benefits Fund Policy) Rules 2015	F2015L01054
15	Private Health Insurance (Levy Administration) Rules 2015	F2015L01056
16	Private Health Insurance (Risk Equalisation Administration) Rules 2015	F2015L01039
17	Private Health Insurance (Risk Equalisation Policy) Rules 2015	F2015L01051

Note 6: F2015L00716, F2015L00717, F2015L00718, F2015L00719, F2015L00749, F2015L00844, F2015L01104, F2015L01110 and F2015L01534 have ceased to have effect.

Part 10—Department of Home Affairs

Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Australian Border Force (Alcohol and Drug Tests) Rule 2015	F2015L00973
3	Australian Border Force (Oath and Affirmation) Rule 2015	F2015L00794
3	Australian Border Force (Secrecy and Disclosure) Rule 2015	F2015L00977
4	Australian Citizenship Act 2007 - Instrument of Authorisation (Subsections 40(3), 40(4), 42(3) and 42(4)) 2015 - IMMI 15/063, IMMI 15/063	F2015L01071
5	Comptroller Directions (Warrants) 2015	F2015L01084
6	Comptroller-General of Customs Declaration of Places No. 1 of 2015, No. 1 of 2015	F2015L01500
7	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 2 of 2015, No. 2 of 2015	F2015L01501
8	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 3 of 2015, No. 3 of 2015	F2015L01502
9	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 4 of 2015, No. 4 of 2015	F2015L01503
10	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 5 of 2015, No. 5 of 2015	F2015L01505
11	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 6 of 2015, No. 6 of 2015	F2015L01506
12	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 7 of 2015, No. 7 of 2015	F2015L01507
13	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 8 of 2015, No. 8 of 2015	F2015L01509

Home Affairs		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
14	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 9 of 2015, No. 9 of 2015	F2015L01512
15	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 10 of 2015, No. 10 of 2015	F2015L01513
16	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 11 of 2015, No. 11 of 2015	F2015L01514
17	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 13 of 2015, No. 13 of 2015	F2015L01494
18	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 16 of 2015, No. 16 of 2015	F2015L01533
19	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 17 of 2015, No. 17 of 2015	F2015L01493
20	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 18 of 2015, No. 18 of 2015	F2015L01495
21	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 19 of 2015, No. 19 of 2015	F2015L01497
22	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 20 of 2015, No. 20 of 2015	F2015L01498
23	Comptroller-General of Customs Instrument of Approval No. 21 of 2015, No. 21 of 2015	F2015L01499
24	Comptroller-General of Customs (Places of Detention) Directions 2015	F2015L00891
25	Comptroller-General of Customs (Warrants) Directions 2015	F2015L00890
26	Customs (Australian Trusted Trader Programme) Rule 2015	F2015L01478
27	Migration Act 1958 - Determination of the fixed maximum number of specified skilled visas that may be granted in the 2015-2016 financial year 2015, IMMI 15/112	F2015L01455
28	Migration Act 1958 - Instrument of Approval of Fall-Back Reporting Systems (International Passenger Cruise Ship – Passengers And Crew) 2015, IMMI 15/024	F2015L01069
29	Migration Act 1958 - Instrument of Approval of Primary Reporting Systems (International Passenger Cruise Ship – Passengers) 2015, IMMI 15/023	F2015L01067
30	Migration Act 1958 - Specification of Instrument of Approval of Fall-Back Reporting Systems (International Passenger Aircraft - Crew) 2015, IMMI 15/020	F2015L01031
31	Migration Act 1958 - Specification of Instrument of Approval of Fall-Back Reporting Systems (International Passenger Aircraft - Passengers) 2015, IMMI 15/021	F2015L01030
32	Migration Act 1958 - Specification of Instrument of Approval of Primary Reporting Systems (International Passenger Aircraft - Crew) 2015, IMMI 15/016	F2015L01043
33	Migration Act 1958 - Specification of Instrument of Approval of Primary Reporting Systems (International Passenger Aircraft - Passengers) 2015, IMMI 15/019	F2015L01034
34	Migration Act 1958 - Specification of Instrument of Approval of Primary Reporting Systems (International Passenger Cruise Ship - Crew) 2015, IMMI 15/022	F2015L01041
35	Migration (IMMI 15/100: Complying Investments) Instrument 2015, IMMI 15/100	F2015L01012
36	Migration Regulations 1994 - Determination – Meaning of Engaged in Employment 2015, IMMI 15/071	F2015L00527

Home A	Home Affairs		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID	
37	Migration Regulations 1994 - Determination – Meaning of Enrolled in Full- time Study at an Educational Institution 2015, IMMI 15/070	F2015L00526	
38	Migration Regulations 1994 - Determination – Meaning of Social Security Benefits 2015, IMMI 15/072	F2015L00528	
39	Migration Regulations 1994 - Specification of Arrangements for Employer Nomination and Regional Employer Nomination Skilled Visas 2015, IMMI 15/032	F2015L00549	
40	Migration Regulations 1994 - Specification of Classes of Persons 2015, IMMI 15/026	F2015L00708	
41	Migration Regulations 1994 - Specification of Disclosure of Information to Prescribed Bodies 2015, IMMI 15/066	F2015L00567	
42	Migration Regulations 1994 - Specification of English Language Tests, Scores and Passports 2015, IMMI 15/062	F2015L00564	
43	Migration Regulations 1994 - Specification of Occupations, a Person or Body, a Country or Countries 2015 (25 June 2015), IMMI 15/091	F2015L01057	
44	Migration Regulations 1994 - Specification of Organisations - IMMI 13/023, IMMI 13/023 Note 7	F2013L00586	

Note 7: <u>F2013L00586</u> was previously listed as sunsetting on 1 October 2023 but its sunset date was changed to 1 October 2025 by a certificate made under section 51 of the *Legislation Act 2003* (see <u>F2023L01297</u>).

Part 11—Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, Communications and the Arts

Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, Communications and the Arts		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Australian Maritime Safety Authority Fees Determination 2015	F2015L01477
2	Christmas Island Marine Traffic and Harbour Facilities Determination 2015	F2015L01591
3	Cocos (Keeling) Islands Marine Traffic and Harbour Facilities Determination 2015	F2015L01593
4	Determination of Degrees, Diplomas and Certificates No. 2015/2, No. 2015/2	F2015L01517
5	Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessel) National Law Regulation 2013, SLI 2013 No. 97 Note 8	F2013L00900
6	Norfolk Island Legislation Amendment Act Transitional Rule 2015 (No 1)	F2015L00832
7	Public Lending Right Scheme 1997 (Modification No. 1 of 2015), No. 1 of 2015	F2015L00694
8	Radiocommunications 1.5 GHz Frequency Band Plan 2015	F2015L01271
9	Radiocommunications (27 MHz Handphone Stations) Class Licence 2015	F2015L01441
10	Radiocommunications Advisory Guidelines (Managing Interference from Spectrum Licensed Transmitters — 3.4 GHz Band) 2015	F2015L00728
11	Radiocommunications Advisory Guidelines (Managing Interference to Spectrum Licensed Receivers — 3.4 GHz Band) 2015	F2015L00729
12	Radiocommunications (Allocation of Transmitter Licences - Low Power Open Narrowcasting Licences) Determination 2015	F2015L01440
13	Radiocommunications (Citizen Band Radio Stations) Class Licence 2015	F2015L00876
14	Radiocommunications (Communication with Space Object) Class Licence 2015	F2015L01486
15	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Aeronautical Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L00495

Infrast	ructure, Transport, Regional Development, Communications and the Arts	
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
16	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Amateur Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L01113
17	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Broadcasting Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L01489
18	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Fixed Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L01430
19	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Fixed Receive Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L01431
20	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Land Mobile Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L00831
21	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Major Coast Receive Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L01285
22	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Maritime Coast Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L01283
23	Radiocommunications Licence Conditions (Outpost Licence) Determination 2015	F2015L01433
24	Radiocommunications (Limitation of Authorisation of Third Party Users and Transfer of Apparatus Licences) Determination 2015	F2015L01218
25	Radiocommunications (Low Interference Potential Devices) Class Licence 2015	F2015L01438
26	Radiocommunications (Maritime Ship Station — 27 MHz and VHF) Class Licence 2015	F2015L01197
27	Radiocommunications (Minimum Age for Issue of Certificates of Proficiency) Declaration 2015	F2015L01286
28	Radiocommunications (Radio-controlled Models) Class Licence 2015	F2015L00497
29	Radiocommunications (Radionavigation—Satellite Service) Class Licence 2015	F2015L01510
30	Radiocommunications (Spectrum Licence Allocation – 1800 MHz Band) Determination 2015	F2015L01373
31	Radiocommunications Spectrum Marketing Plan (1800 MHz Band) 2015	F2015L01372
32	Radiocommunications (Trading Rules for Defence Spectrum Licences) Determination 2015	F2015L01217
33	Radiocommunications (Unacceptable Levels of Interference — 3.4 GHz Band) Determination 2015	F2015L00727
34	Removal of Prisoners (Territories) Regulation 2015, SLI 2015 No. 165	F2015L01524
35	Telecommunications (Eligible Revenue) Determination 2015	F2015L00842
36	Telecommunications (Numbering Charges) (Allocation Charge) Determination 2015	F2015L01152
37	Telecommunications (Participating Persons) Determination 2015	F2015L01117

Note 8: $\underline{F2013L00900}$ was previously listed as sunsetting on 1 October 2023 but its sunset date was changed to 1 October 2025 by a certificate made under section 51 of the $\underline{Legislation\ Act\ 2003}$ (see $\underline{F2023L00976}$).

Part 12—Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet

Prime Minister and Cabinet		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Finance Minister's Orders (Financial Statements for reporting periods ending on or after 1 July 2011) Repeal Instrument 2015*	F2015L00889
2	Recognition as Representative Aboriginal/Torres Strait Islander Body 2015 (No. 5) Note 10	F2015L00991

Part 13—Department of Social Services

Social Services		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Asset-test Exempt Income Stream (Lifetime Income Stream Guidelines) (Social Security) Determination 2015	F2015L01444
2	Business Services Wage Assessment Tool Payment Scheme Rules 2015	F2015L01129
3	Family Assistance (Public Interest Certificate Guidelines) Determination 2015	F2015L01269
4	National Disability Insurance Scheme (Children) Rules 2013 Note 11	F2013L01070
5	National Disability Insurance Scheme (Nominees) Rules 2013 Note 11	F2013L01062
6	National Disability Insurance Scheme (Plan Management) Rules 2013 Note 11	F2013L01064
7	National Disability Insurance Scheme (Protection and Disclosure of Information) Rules 2013 Note 11	F2013L01008
8	National Disability Insurance Scheme (Supports for Participants—Accounting for Compensation) Rules 2013 Note 11	F2013L01414
9	National Disability Insurance Scheme (Supports for Participants) Rules 2013 Note 11	F2013L01063
10	Social and Community Services Pay Equity Special Account (Legal Assistance Services) Specification 2015	F2015L01229
11	Social Security (Administration) (Income Management – Crediting of Accounts) Rules 2015	F2015L00781
12	Social Security (Class of Visas – Newly Arrived Resident's Waiting Period for Special Benefit) Determination 2015 (No. 2)	F2015L01547
13	Social Security (Class of Visas – Qualification for Special Benefit) Determination 2015 (No. 2)	F2015L01542
14	Social Security (Declaration of Visa in a Class of Visas - Special Benefit Activity Test) Determination 2015 (No. 2)	F2015L01554
15	Social Security Exempt Lump Sum (Certain Commonwealth Discretionary Payments) Determination 2015	F2015L01092
16	Social Security Exempt Lump Sum (F-111 Deseal/Reseal Lump Sum Payment) Determination 2015	F2015L01088
17	Social Security (Exempt Lump Sum) (South Australian River Murray Sustainability Irrigation Industry Improvement Program) (Agriculture) Determination 2015	F2015L00757
18	Social Security (Means Test Treatment of Private Trusts – Excluded Trusts) Declaration 2015	F2015L01363
19	Social Security (Personal Care Support – Victorian Transport Accident Commission – Scheme for Payment of Medical and Like Benefits to Persons Injured as a result of a Transport Accident and Scheme for Individualised Funding) Determination 2015	F2015L00587
20	Social Security (Public Interest Certificate Guidelines) (DSS) Determination 2015	F2015L01267
21	Social Security (Tasmanian Motor Accidents Insurance Board 'Future Care Payments') Determination 2015	F2015L01260
22	Student Assistance (Public Interest Certificate Guidelines) Determination 2015	F2015L01268

Note 11: <u>F2013L01008</u>, <u>F2013L01062</u>, <u>F2013L01063</u>, <u>F2013L01064</u>, <u>F2013L01070</u>, and <u>F2013L01414</u> were previously listed as sunsetting on 1 October 2023 but their sunset date was changed to 1 October 2025 by a certificate made under section 51 of the *Legislation Act 2003* (see <u>F2023L00965</u>).

Part 14—Department of the Treasury

Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 Rules for Applying	F2015L01575
	Subdivision 66-B Determination (No.31) 2015	
2	A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 Simplified GST	F2015L01587
	Accounting Method Determination (No. 29) 2015	
3	A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 Simplified GST	F2015L01578
	Accounting Methods Determination (No. 28) 2015	
4	A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 Telecommunication	F2015L01574
	Supplies Determination (No. 38) 2015	
5	A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 Waiver of Tax	F2015L01569
	Invoice Requirement Determination (No.30) 2015	
5	A New Tax System (GST, Luxury Car Tax and Wine Tax) Direction 2015	F2015L00566
7	ASIC Corporations (Adara Advisors) Instrument 2015/628	F2015L01255
3	ASIC Corporations (Advertising by Product Issuers) Instrument 2015/539	F2015L01306
)	ASIC Corporations (Avia Syndicate) Instrument 2015/825	F2015L01443
10	ASIC Corporations (Basic Deposit and General Insurance Product	F2015L01184
	Distribution) Instrument 2015/682	
1	ASIC Corporations (Compromises or Arrangements) Instrument 2015/358	F2015L01379
12	ASIC Corporations (Deposit Product Disclosure) Instrument 2015/683	F2015L01183
13	ASIC Corporations (Derivative Transaction Reporting Exemption) Instrument	F2015L01530
	2015/844	
14	ASIC Corporations (Externally-Administered Bodies) Instrument 2015/251	F2015L00737
15	ASIC Corporations (Facilitating Electronic Delivery of Financial Services	F2015L01185
	Disclosure) Instrument 2015/647	
16	ASIC Corporations (Financial Services Guides) Instrument 2015/541	F2015L01308
17	ASIC Corporations (Foreign Rights Issues) Instrument 2015/356	F2015L01377
18	ASIC Corporations (Foreign Scrip Bids) Instrument 2015/357	F2015L01378
.9	ASIC Corporations (Foreign Securities—Incidental Advertising) Instrument 2015/360	F2015L01381
20	ASIC Corporations (Foreign Securities—Publishing Notices) Instrument 2015/359	F2015L01380
21	ASIC Corporations (Foreign Small-Scale Offers) Instrument 2015/362	F2015L01382
22	ASIC Corporations (General Advice Warning) Instrument 2015/540	F2015L01307
23	ASIC Corporations (Managed investment product consideration) Instrument	F2015L01561
	2015/847	1 2013101301
24	ASIC Corporations (Non-Reporting Entities) Instrument 2015	F2015L01546
25	ASIC Corporations (Post Balance Date Reporting) Instrument 201/842	F2015L01552
26	ASIC Corporations (Related Scheme Reports) Instrument 2015/839	F2015L01549
27	ASIC Corporations (Removing Barriers to Electronic Disclosure) Instrument	F2015L01187
	2015/649	1 2010201107
28	ASIC Corporations (Stapled Group Reports) Instrument 2015/838	F2015L01548
29	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (confidentiality) determination	F2015L00701
	No. 6 of 2015, No. 6 of 2015	12010200701
30	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (confidentiality) determination	F2015L00700
- •	No.8 of 2015, No. 8 of 2015	1 2010 200 700
31	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (confidentiality) determination	F2015L00806
. 4	No.10 of 2015, No. 10 of 2015	<u> </u>
32	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (confidentiality) determination	F2015L00897
	No.12 of 2015, No. 12 of 2015	120121200071

Treasury		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
33	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (confidentiality) determination No.16 of 2015, No. 16 of 2015	F2015L01325
34	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (confidentiality) determination No. 17 of 2015, No. 17 of 2015	F2015L01551
35	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority instrument fixing charges No. 1 of	F2015L00504
36	2015, No. 1 of 2015 Australian Prudential Regulation Authority instrument fixing charges No. 2 of 2015, No. 2 of 2015	F2015L00795
37	Banking (restricted word or expression) determination No. 1 of 2015, No. 1 of 2015	F2015L01253
38	Banking (restricted word or expression) No. 2 of 2015, No. 2 of 2015	F2015L01473
39	Census and Statistics (2016 Census Day) Proclamation 2015	F2015L01249
40	Commonwealth Inscribed Stock Regulation 2015, SLI 2015 No. 65	F2015L00631
41	Determination of the GST Revenue Sharing Relativities for 2015-16 in accordance with the Federal Financial Relations Act 2009	F2015L00661
42	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 68 (November 2014)	F2015L00885
43	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 69 (December 2014)	F2015L00884
44	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 70 (January 2015)	F2015L00883
45	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 71 (February 2015)	F2015L00882
46	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 72 (March 2015)	F2015L00881
47	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 73 (April 2015)	F2015L00880
48	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 74 (May 2015)	F2015L01090
49	Federal Financial Relations (General purpose financial assistance) Determination No. 75 (June 2015)	F2015L01091
50	Federal Financial Relations (National Health Reform Payments) Determination 2013-14	F2015L00879
51	Federal Financial Relations (National Partnership payments) Determination No. 87 (December 2014)	F2015L01093
52	Federal Financial Relations (National Partnership payments) Determination No. 88 (January 2015)	F2015L01094
53	Federal Financial Relations (National Partnership payments) Determination No. 89 (February 2015)	F2015L01095
54	Federal Financial Relations (National Partnership payments) Determination No. 90 (March 2015)	F2015L01096
55	Federal Financial Relations (National Partnership payments) Determination No. 91 (April 2015)	F2015L01097
56	Federal Financial Relations (National Partnership payments) Determination No. 92 (May 2015)	F2015L01098
57	Federal Financial Relations (National Partnership payments) Determination No. 93 (June 2015)	F2015L01099
58	Federal Financial Relations (National Specific Purpose Payments) Determination 2013-14 No. 1	F2015L00877

Treasu	y	
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
59	Federal Financial Relations (National Specific Purpose Payments) Determination 2013-14 No. 2	F2015L00878
60	Financial Sector (Collection of Data) (reporting standard) determination No.	F2015L00579
61	30 of 2015, No. 30 of 2015 Financial Sector (Collection of Data) (reporting standard) determination No.	F2015L01055
	34 of 2015, No. 34 of 2015	
62	Goods and Services Tax: Application of Agency Arrangements to the Multi- Media Industry Determination (No. 33) 2015	F2015L01579
63	Goods and Services Tax: Choosing to Account on a Cash Basis Determination (No 39) 2015 - representatives of incapacitated entities	F2015L01570
64	Goods and Services Tax: Extension of Time to Issue An Adjustment Note Determination (No. 35) 2015	F2015L01589
65	Goods and Services Tax: Extension of Time to Issue An Adjustment Note	F2015L01582
66	Determination (No. 36) 2015 Goods and Services Tax: Extension of Time to Issue An Adjustment Note	F2015L01577
	Determination (No. 37) 2015 - Supplies made by electricity distributors to electricity retailers	
67	Goods and Services Tax: Margin Scheme Valuation Requirements Determination MSV (No. 53) 2015	F2015L01584
68	Goods and Services Tax: Particular Attribution Rules for supplies and	F2015L01583
	acquisitions relating to the operation of a Collecting Society under the Copyright Act Determination (No. 34) 2015	
59	GST-free Supply (Drugs and Medicinal Preparations) Determination 2015	F2015L01466
70	Health Insurance (prudential standard) determination No. 4 of 2015, No. 4 of 2015 Note 12	F2015L01048
71	Income Tax Assessment (1936 Act) Regulation 2015, SLI 2015 No. 155	F2015L01415
72	Income Tax Assessment (Methods for Valuing Unlisted Shares) Approval 2015	F2015L01072
73	Income Tax (Effective Life of Depreciating Assets) Determination 2015	F2015L00798
74	Insurance Determination No. 1 of 2015, No. 1 of 2015	F2015L00886
75	Loans Securities Regulation 2015, SLI 2015 No. 64	F2015L00632
76	Lodgment of account activity statements by First Home Saver Account providers for the year ended 30 June 2015 in accordance with the Taxation Administration Act 1953	F2015L00783
77	Lodgment of income tax returns for the year of income ended 30 June 2015 in accordance with the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and the Taxation Administration Act 1953 – Department of Human Services – parents with a child support assessment	F2015L00784
78	Lodgment of returns for the year of income ended 30 June 2015 in accordance with the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936, the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997, the Taxation Administration Act 1953, the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) Act 1993 and the Income Tax (Transitional Provisions) Act 1997	F2015L00786
79	National Disability Insurance Scheme—Risk Management Rules 2013 Note 13	F2013L01183
80	National Disability Insurance Scheme—Rules for the Scheme Actuary 2013 Note 13	F2013L01184
81	PAYG Withholding Variation: Variation of amount to be withheld from certain payments made by external administrators and trustees of bankrupt estates	F2015L01528
82	Price Notification Declaration (Australia Post Letter Services) (No. 2) 2015	F2015L01429

Treasury		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
83	Private Health Insurance (Health Benefits Fund Enforcement) Rules 2015	F2015L01036
84	Taxation Administration Act 1953 - Pay as you go withholding - PAYG	F2015L01047
	Withholding Variation: Allowances – Legislative Instrument	
85	Wine Equalisation Tax: Correcting WET Errors Determination 2015	F2015L01190

Note 12: <u>F2015L01048</u> was current when this list was prepared but is due to be repealed on 1 July 2025 (see <u>F2023L01242</u>). Note 13: <u>F2013L01183</u> and <u>F2013L01184</u> were previously listed as sunsetting on 1 October 2023 but their sunset date was changed to 1 October 2025 by a certificate made under section 51 of the *Legislation Act 2003* (see <u>F2023L01302</u>).

Part 15—Department of Veterans' Affairs

Veterans' Affairs		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
1	Asset-test Exempt Income Stream (Lifetime Income Stream Guidelines) Determination 2015	F2015L01279
2	Finance Minister's Orders (Financial Statements for reporting periods ending on or after 1 July 2011) Repeal Instrument 2015*	F2015L00889
3	Military Rehabilitation and Compensation Act Education and Training Scheme 2004 (2 July 2015), Instrument 2015 No. MRCC 43	F2015L01281
4	Motor Vehicle Compensation Scheme (6 August 2015), Instrument 2015 No. MRCC 20	F2015L01245
5	MRCA Approved Classes of Payments Determination 2015	F2015L01410
6	Statement of Principles concerning Achilles tendinopathy and bursitis (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 97 of 2015), No. 97 of 2015	F2015L01337
7	Statement of Principles concerning Achilles tendinopathy and bursitis (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 96 of 2015), No. 96 of 2015	F2015L01336
8	Statement of Principles concerning acute myeloid leukaemia (No. 71 of 2015), No. 71 of 2015	F2015L00903
9	Statement of Principles concerning acute myeloid leukaemia (No. 72 of 2015), No. 72 of 2015	F2015L00904
10	Statement of Principles concerning arachnoid cyst (No. 91 of 2015), No. 91 of 2015	F2015L00924
11	Statement of Principles concerning arachnoid cyst (No. 92 of 2015), No. 92 of 2015	F2015L00925
12	Statement of Principles concerning cardiomyopathy (No. 85 of 2015), No. 85 of 2015	F2015L00917
13	Statement of Principles concerning cardiomyopathy (No. 86 of 2015), No. 86 of 2015	F2015L00918
14	Statement of Principles concerning cerebrovascular accident No. 65 of 2015, No. 65 of 2015	F2015L00652
15	Statement of Principles concerning cerebrovascular accident No. 66 of 2015, No. 66 of 2015	F2015L00653
16	Statement of Principles concerning fracture (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 95 of 2015), No. 95 of 2015	F2015L01343
17	Statement of Principles concerning fracture (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 94 of 2015), No. 94 of 2015	F2015L01340
18	Statement of Principles concerning gastric ulcer and duodenal ulcer No. 61 of 2015, No. 61 of 2015	F2015L00657
19	Statement of Principles concerning gastric ulcer and duodenal ulcer No. 62 of 2015, No. 62 of 2015	F2015L00658

Veterans' Affairs		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
20	Statement of Principles concerning hallux valgus (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 99 of 2015), No. 99 of 2015	F2015L01335
21	Statement of Principles concerning hallux valgus (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 98 of 2015), No. 98 of 2015	F2015L01334
22	Statement of Principles concerning hepatitis E (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 113 of 2015), No. 113 of 2015	F2015L01333
23	Statement of Principles concerning hepatitis E (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 112 of 2015), No. 112 of 2015	F2015L01332
24	Statement of Principles concerning ingrowing nail (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 107 of 2015), No. 107 of 2015	F2015L01327
25	Statement of Principles concerning ingrowing nail (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 106 of 2015), No. 106 of 2015	F2015L01326
26	Statement of Principles concerning lipoma (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 101 of 2015), No. 101 of 2015	F2015L01316
27	Statement of Principles concerning lipoma (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 100 of 2015), No. 100 of 2015	F2015L01315
28	Statement of Principles concerning malignant melanoma of the skin (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 103 of 2015), No. 103 of 2015	F2015L01318
29	Statement of Principles concerning malignant melanoma of the skin (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 102 of 2015), No. 102 of 2015	F2015L01317
30	Statement of Principles concerning malignant neoplasm of the bile duct No. 69 of 2015, No. 69 of 2015	F2015L00654
31	Statement of Principles concerning malignant neoplasm of the bile duct No. 70 of 2015, No. 70 of 2015	F2015L00655
32	Statement of Principles concerning malignant neoplasm of the gallbladder (No. 89 of 2015), No. 89 of 2015	F2015L00921
33	Statement of Principles concerning malignant neoplasm of the gallbladder (No. 90 of 2015), No. 90 of 2015	F2015L00922
34	Statement of Principles concerning Meniere's disease (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 109 of 2015), No. 109 of 2015	F2015L01329
35	Statement of Principles concerning Meniere's disease (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 108 of 2015), No. 108 of 2015	F2015L01328
36	Statement of Principles concerning mesothelioma (Balance of Probabilities) (No. 105 of 2015), No. 105 of 2015	F2015L01320
37	Statement of Principles concerning mesothelioma (Reasonable Hypothesis) (No. 104 of 2015), No. 104 of 2015	F2015L01319
38	Statement of Principles concerning myasthenia gravis (No. 75 of 2015), No. 75 of 2015	F2015L00907
39	Statement of Principles concerning myasthenia gravis (No. 76 of 2015), No. 76 of 2015	F2015L00908
40	Statement of Principles concerning myelodysplastic syndrome (No. 73 of 2015), No. 73 of 2015	F2015L00905
41	Statement of Principles concerning myelodysplastic syndrome (No. 74 of 2015), No. 74 of 2015	F2015L00906
42	Statement of Principles concerning trigeminal neuralgia (No. 77 of 2015), No. 77 of 2015	F2015L00909
43	Statement of Principles concerning trigeminal neuralgia (No. 78 of 2015), No. 78 of 2015	F2015L00910
44	Statement of Principles concerning trigeminal neuropathy (No. 79 of 2015), No. 79 of 2015	F2015L00911

Veterans' Affairs		
Item	Instrument name and series number (if any)	Register ID
45	Statement of Principles concerning trigeminal neuropathy (No. 80 of 2015), No. 80 of 2015	F2015L00912
46	Statement of Principles concerning tuberculosis (No. 81 of 2015), No. 81 of 2015	F2015L00913
47	Statement of Principles concerning tuberculosis (No. 82 of 2015), No. 82 of 2015	F2015L00914
48	Veterans' Affairs (Private Patient Principles Re-Making) Revocation Instrument 2015	F2015L01341
49	Veterans' Entitlements (Asset-test Exempt Income Stream (Market-linked) – Payment Factors) Principles 2005 (6 August 2015), Instrument 2015 No. R7	F2015L01252
50	Veterans' Entitlements (Continued Fringe Benefits) Determination 2015, 2015 No. R24	F2015L01135
51	Veterans' Entitlements (Direct Deductions Arrangements) Instrument 2015, 2015 No. R23	F2015L01134
52	Veterans' Entitlements (Income Support Supplement – Permanent Incapacity for Work) Determination 2015, 2015 No. R25	F2015L01136
53	Veterans' Entitlements (Means Test Treatment of Private Trusts – Excluded Trusts) Declaration 2015	F2015L01246
54	Veterans' Entitlements (Veterans' Children Education Scheme - Guidance and Counselling Services) Determination 2000 (10 August 2015), Instrument 2015 No. Min.12	F2015L01265
55	Veterans' Vocational Rehabilitation Scheme (10 August 2015), Instrument 2015 No. R11	F2015L01263